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j den of proof is on committee .on legal
. to prove by full, preponderatmg and. ‘31%‘3
: evidence the charges coatamed in the com:

' .4 Attomey and Cliént ¢=58

“who pled guﬂty to aiding and assisting:in
preparation and presentation of false and
fraudulent federal income tax return..nThe
Supreme .Court of Appeals-held that:i{(1}
proof .of “cotiviction satisfies. burden:of
proof of ‘committee on legal ethics;.. (2)lis

cense to practice law should be-annulled;

and (3) attorney had no right to ev:dentmry

mltxgatmn hearing. - 7 R
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2 Attorney and Client @53(2) I ,,:,Tg
. In attorney discipline proceedmg,

rmtbee on legal ethics satisfies its, burde g& SO
proof by providing courtvnth copy of. .ordqg o

of conviction, State Bar By-Laws,
§§ 23 25 Rules of Prof Conduct, RuIe g&l

8. Attorney and Client 58 '“""' -‘“”m
o ‘Attorniéy’s license shall ‘be a.rmu'ﬂeéI
upon_proof that he has been comncte

criminal act that reflects adversely on"gix[é

' ness £0 practice law. State Bar By— .
-~ Art. VI, § 28; Rules of Prof,Cofidu ict, 93%
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' COMMITTEE ON'LEGAL ETHICS v. HART

W.Va. 715

Clte us 410 S.E.2d 714 (W.Va. 1991)

hearing, where attorney was serving 18-
month sentence after pleading guilty: to
offense -of aiding and assisting in prepara-
tion.and presentation of false and.fraudu-
lent: income tax return, and attorney.did
not identify .circumstances which- would
prompt Supreme Court to grant mltlgatxon
hearmg P S T T U
, Syllabus by the Court .'.,. e
L e “Where there has been a. fma]
cnmmal convmtaon, proof on the record of
such. conviction: sat:sf:es t.he Commlttee on
Legal Ethics’ burden of f proving; an- ethmal
violation . ansmg from -such, eonvu:t:on
Syllahus Point 2, Comm:ttee on Legal Bth-

- dos'v, Si, [=-]. W, Va. [ 380 S.E. 2d 219

(1989). " Syl P, 1, “Committée on, hegaz
Bthics . Boettriér, Jv, [—] W.Va. |—]
394 S.E.2d 735 (1990)” Syl pt. 1, ‘Com-
mittee on. Legal Ethics . Folzo, J:—]
WVa =] 401 S.E.2d 248 (1990,

i 2 “The cases.in whmh a. mmgat:on
hearmg wxll be appropnate are the gxcep-
tion rather than the rule. - Whether a, miti-
gation hearing is appropriate in a part:lcu-
lar instance will depend upon a vanety of
factors, mcludmg but not hm1ted to, the
nature of the attorney’s misconduct, ‘sur-
rounding facts and circumstances; previous
ethical violations,” the wﬂlfulness of ~the
conduct, and the adequacy of the attorney 8
prevmus epportumty to present ewdence
sufﬁcxent for debermmataon ‘of appropnate

mm'ittée 6‘3%

i, ' 13401

SE24, 2’4@ g0y, T
e R At anitog .1
» Matia :Marino : Pntter,_nBa.r -Counsel,
Charleston, for complainant. = .27 o=

.- Henry .Clay..Hart, .Jr. ,,«pro"se,;..{f Ai]
5GE e anijuabe ot od soivg bobicob 20540

PER CURIAM:

"1" m :_oteo.rana a,. ag' :im,:mq 21:& 1“1“] 2,
thexComnutteeuon Legal Etlues of theWWest

TUSTAIRSWA T0 39T 20 nE a burols
l. 26:hS.C, 7206(2):(1988) prqv:des;rin velevant
parr,l ‘that- any person who ! soenes

"[w]illfully ‘atds oF" assisls m ‘or procures.
lc_:eunsels. or *sdvisu' the* preparanon q:“*pre

“ laws, of a'Feturn,”; .7, Which {5’ ﬁ-audt}leint or

© “ is false ‘as 'to- any’ material malter; !

Virginia State Bar (“the Committee”)’ tec-
ommends that this Court annul the licensa
to practice law of ‘the respondent; Henry
Clay:Hart; Jr. Mr. Hart pledd guilty:id
United States District Court Tor the South!
ern Distriét ofCalifornia to:aiding andiail

sisting in the preparation: end“presei:tatiun.

of a false and fraudulent. federal income
tax Teturn in vwlatxon,l “of 26 U S,gx

§ 7206(2) (1988)‘ - Mr, Hart, malntams that

(R

he has a bona fide defense to the. allega-
tions. contamed m the Commnttee's eog‘h

plamt, and asserts that he is enmled3t9 an B ’

ewdennary mltlgatmn hearlgg. For
reasons stated below, we eoncéuﬂe that
Hart'is’ ot entitled to. an-evi entggrym i

gat:on heanng and hereby erder the. anﬁ

ment of his’ hcense to practlee law m 915 b

cot iR th
L NI Y
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An lnforma.txon dated October 12 1990

State of West Vu'gmla

was filed against Mr. Hart in the United -
States District Court of the Southern Dls- S

triet of Califorria charging thathe w

aidéd and dasisted in, ‘and’ précured eotihe |
* geled'and adviséd, the preparataon “and’ 5’&5 .
sentation of an “individual incomeé fax i'e3
turn-to the Internal Revenue Semce%v‘hic'ﬂ'

Lo

was' false and fraudulént as t6 -3 mar%ena
mattér. The information ‘harged that the
income tax return of Rohert . Brown're

resented that’ Mr“ZBrown Was ent:tled\‘ gt
der the prov:slons of the l'ntemaf Re#e%ug %

Laws t6 ¢laim’#] ey operation 16%3

" 0f:$13;509.00 andi a.szaﬂezonm t:red:t s

resulting- from rrmvestmg‘.nm -Whitewater;
River. Blectric; Power Limited,va- wmd:ﬁffl
partnership. ~- The:: mfommﬁonwﬁuﬂler
charged::that. Mr.: Hart :knew! fthatr[:l;r
Brown'waswmot entitled to .claim-eithez
operating 10s¢ -or; thetax credit for..1984.

On:Octobef 123 1990;2Mr (Hart msned

waiver of mdlpt:ment in whlchcnhe

that, e faceedings. s His, Gase Yiu te"

by. mformatnon xather than by ‘indictmen
Tlev v LECH I '_'.-: a8 2 n'L. jon1 128 lan
b Mol lzano
shall be gullty ‘of feiony angd, upon gonyic
tion thereof, shall be fined not more than

. $100,000 ($500,000 in the case of a. eerporae
uon). or impnscncd not - more thai t

.........

ecution.

'the“
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On January .22, 1991, Mr. Hart pleaded
guilty to aiding and assisting in the prepa-
ration. and . presentation of .a -false. and
fraudulent federal income tax returr in.vio-
lation‘ of. 26-.TLS.C.. § T206(2). (1988). .~ Mr.
Hart-was sentenced to'a téerm of impﬁson-
‘ment: for-a. penod of :eighteen months..

The Commlttee contends that M. Hart's
license to practlce law should be annulled

: because he was convicted of crimes involv-
mg ‘moral turpitude and professional unfit-
ness w1thm ‘the meamng of section 28 'of
article’ VI-of the’ By—-Laws of the- West
V:rgmla Staté Bar and crimes that” ‘reflect
adversely ‘6n “the Iawyer’s honestyf%
worthmess, ‘and fitness aga Iawyer m other
respects ‘within ' the ‘meaning of 8. 4(b)’ of
the Rules of “Professional Conduct: - Mr.
Hart maintains that he has’s bona fide
defense to the Committee’s allegations and
requests an evidentiary mitigation hearing.

v II [T ‘-gﬁ TR

vorm T winid

_ [l 2] The burden of proof ds- on the
Commlttee to prove by full, preponderatmg
a.nd clear e\ndence the cha.rges contained in
the complamt filed on behalf of the Com-
mittee. Syl apt. 1, Commzttee on Legal
E'thtcs 'v Lewis, 156 W Va 8!19 197‘SE.2d
312 (19'73) However, we recogmzed .m_syl-
labus.point 1. of Commzttee on Legal Eth:
ics v Folzo, — WVa. 401 S E2d%8
_(1990), that proo£ oﬁa finallconweuon satis-
f-.i.?-‘-" the_._gq ~bu::den“of proof i
£“Where: fhere has. Been &' findlSerinis
_nal :eoniviction, > proof (on the recordrzof
;i sdchveonvictinm isatisfies] the Committed
+son.Legak:Fithies’ burden of prévingan
ethlcalmolahnn an?smg':ﬁfom simh' eonm'c:

b Legabwﬂhap 7.5 8ix? [«-—} W.Vaiifes]
& 380:5.8.2d:219-(1989)21 Syl. Pt'LpTom:

gLeng o P e 'Dn "‘f‘ tavigw
é}.& r'nrje i ‘ilsg?:émtﬁ' %ﬂi
y providesihat ﬁQpro
Jmiseoﬁauet ot mdﬁcﬁéﬂo g inmilt " cFiris
nal act that reflects adversely on the lawyer's
honesty, trustwort.hinm or ﬁmss as a lawyer
in othér rcspects[]" N

R L R L Y Tromoit

3 “$Section 25 ‘b article VI of the State ‘Bar By-
" Laws,“at page 572 of the ‘1991 “Court’ Ritles”

“*volume, ‘providés, in’ relevant part: ™ -2 755(
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mittee on Legal Ethics v. Boettner, Jr.;

(-]} W.Va, [—] 394 S.E.2d 735 (1990},
The Committee in the case before us:His
satisfied its burden of proving Mr. Hartd
conviction by providing. this Court with::a
copy of the order of -conviction?. - Joa

[3] Under section 28 of article VI of thE -
State Bar By-Laws, an attorney’s licende
shall be annulled upon proof that he has
been convicted of any crime mvolvmg mor-
al trirpitude or professional unfitness 4s we
recognized In syllabug’ point 8 of Comit:
tee on Legal Ethics-v:-Siz, {~=] " WV42
(<1380 S.E2d 219 (1989) widod [aged

¢ “Sechon 23 Part E, Artlc]e Vrof%

. By—LaWs of the West Virginia Staté” Bat' _
‘imposes upon any Court before’ whu:fxp
attorney has been qualified 2 mandaﬁ)

© duty to annul the license_ of duch’ attm%

ney to practice law upon proof’ that‘he

has béen convicted of any crime mvplg,

ing moral turpntude * Point 2, syll‘abus

“In the Matter of Mann, 151, W Va: 644

" [154 S.E.2d:860°(1967) )" Syllabus; Vo A

" Srith, “168 W.Va. 18, 208 "S.E2d 920

(1974) [ A et ‘),_uﬂ'a

However, as we pomted out m C'omm”i
tee on Legal Ethics v. Boettner, — W a
at -—, 394 S.E.2d at.738, under our n]egv
professmnal ¢ode, Rule 8.4 of the Ru]e
Professional Conduct, ‘the focus has sﬁ
from “illegal conduet ihvolving moral
tide” to “a critninal act that’ reﬂe ’?1
versely on the ]awyers honesty, trusfw'?

DIGD

"t.hmess or fltness In other respects ”5

8.4 now concentrates on the. Iawyer’s[cry%? e
nal act as it reflects on his or her fitness {6
practice law rather than on the concept of
“moral turpltude M. Id. a.t —_ 394 S.E2d4
at 738, ~ ! z3add-

[4] This' Court. recogmzed dn ear‘l:er’:--, o

cases decided prior to the adoptxon o.ffx :%t{ﬂe
MoApHL
. . In any proceeding to suspcnd or an.nul
" license of any such attorney Bécas<’of his .
her]. convictionr of any érime or crimes’ muk R
tioned in sections twenty-three or twenty-four, -

. a certified . copy.of the order or judgmert of

" conviction shall--he conclusive evidenceof
.. guilt_of the crime_or. crimes of -which- the

.- .attorney_has been convicied.. A plea or,ver- -

", dict of guilty or a conviction after 4 plea of

e

.., viction within the. meanmg of this,

. "nolo conténdere shall be deemed” tqh sefﬁo . -
on, -
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“8.4 that the filing of a false and franduTent basmp the ﬂhéﬁﬁi’ﬁm ﬁb&%?ﬁf&fﬂﬁn -
income tax return in an attempt to défraiid 3?011’6%%&%%’1:01?‘5{ heoaiie.

the government is a crime involving moral tee and ordeP RS AR ik

ent/of MEHIF®s

turpitude. - I the Matter ‘of Trent, 154 license to practice law in thelStat2dE West.;__"
“W.Va:' 333, 175.8.E.2d : 461:(1970); .In the Virginia. We shall alzo requlre Ml' Hart
Matter of Mann, 151 W.Va. 644; 164 $E:2d  to reimburse th mmrttee fs 2 C A

860 (1967),-overruled on another point:by hag mcurred

< Commiltee: on' Legal Ethics v Boetiner, é’éé’&ﬂfﬁs'e %‘ t :.
”‘"ﬁﬁ? 4

= W.Va at —, 394 SE.2d at130: cUpon W StmihlbA-10 Aife ’
considering this~same eriminal ‘act’ under ‘:%zldm" O esrs?z
‘Rule 8.4, we find that M, Hart’s attempt ,© clves gp Rsesom

- and-fraudulent income tax return forhis B’F
sclient. was-a flagrant. violation: of Rulez8id ¥

~ to defraud the government by filing:4-false 'ﬁgﬂ f'b‘(}&ﬁ 7 w&ﬁ“ ‘ ..
"gél”‘w ﬁ‘ 33(1 “Sﬁﬁd“%%s .

o m 9391 'mdjsdw @:Iaia' .

:and ‘clearly indicates' that Mr. Hart is unfit %K‘h& @ﬁ 15 stade gaibaamsb RN

" -aoisitsq 1edsriw | bs: .hatmnmoo BAW 9208

.to practice:law.’t 1 bwmian o ciug ofdr et -10 luqulnﬂ

“UISY M Hartasksthls COurtto’g}a'a R
- his request for s evidentiary heaﬁﬁ"‘% a'mq i -ad
allow hlm to mtroduce mitigating ‘fac’cors 2D grols

flfggﬂéﬁ bio
9
RN,

rogeq 2 19

o{l bap’ noui!umxﬂ 2

which'may bear on the disciplinary pumsh- o Doiied 9dMebive gaionivioo brs wslD
ment to be imposed. However, thereis io staiz i o1 919 misnoisiteq d8dd duilleyee ‘
absolute right to a mitigation hearmg in omi fa’ bnstyalf soitibanxe gm‘-mmab,"

B S Y

"every dlsciphnary proceeding. -=-As  we -
J?pomted out m syllabus pomt 3of F'olzo, .
Ivsum rotn ‘:_';.','-: T my ol ot
'I'he cdses in Which & mxt:gat:lon ﬁbﬁ% :
~~ing will be-appropridte are the'. exce :
““father than the rule. ‘Whather a' mrtl'g’a- |
tlorr Hearing'is appropriate in a partfilar -
- instance will depend upon a varletyrot
factors, mcludmg but no{: hm:ted to""i:ﬁe

? —vroundmg facts And mrcumstances, pne\n
"t Giug ethical Aiblations, thé willfultivawlas |

*ithe® Gonduet Hhd" the ‘adequacy of 'the 1 L
2 aatforhey’s D ibrevmui‘”“ opportiifiity 2o * "
i presient evadance suffielent for'detéiﬁix—

*natao?r of appropnate ‘aanetaons uumnqg

[6], In the case now before i us, ]ﬁ{sﬁ’p
j)lead g'tulty to ‘the offense of auﬁn -
assnstmg in“the preparat:oh and pre ;
tion of - ¥alse’ and fravddient incorie - :
return in violatomof—26 U.S.C. 7206(2) fonl
Qﬂ%)zo%Mw %‘.’-&U‘*‘Fm)‘mm' '

elg hteen-month Sentehce. In ins res

e e S o el
any circumistan eci!iTo uriding e
which would prompt this Court to g;m
him a mitigation hel@u‘mg'r 'We hidrafore .
.denysMr.:Hart's 'reqnest‘for an’‘evidentiary " i




IN THE SUPREME COURT OF APPEALS OF WEST VIRGINIA

September 1991 Term
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St A 2. 1
THE COMMITTEE ON LEGAL ETHICé?q%M?ﬁxf!ﬁ%;2§7p”'—
CLERK OF THE

OF THE WEST VIRGINIA STATE BAR, ... .. . wLENKOF THE
Complainant YRR, SO Q0 APRIALS

HENRY CLAY HART, JR., A MEMBER
OF THE WEST VIRGINIA STATE BAR,
Respondent

Disciplinary Proceeding

LICENSE TO PRACTICE ANNULLED

Submitted: September 10, 1991
Filed: October 22, 1991

Maria Marino Potter

Bar Counsel

Charleston, West Virginia
Attorney for the Complainant

Henry Clay Hart, Jr., Pro Se

This Opinion was delivered PER CURIAM.



SYLILABUS BY THE COURT
1. "’"Where there has been a final criminal conviction,
proof on the record of such conviction satisfies the Committee on
Legal Ethics’ burden . of proving an ethical violation arising from
such conviction." Syllabus Point 2, Committee on Legal Ethics wv.

Six, W. Va. , 380 S.E.2d 219 (1989).’ Syl. Pt. 1,

Committee on lLegal Ethics v, Boettner, Jr., W. Va. , 394

S.E.2d@ 735 (1990)." Syl. pt. 1, Committee on TLegal Ethics v,
Folio, W. Va. , 401 S.E.2d& 248 (1990).

2. "The cases in which a mitigation hearing will be
appropriate are the exception rather than the rule. Whether a
mitigation hearing is appropriate in a particular instance will
depend upon a variety of factors, including but not limited to, the
nature of the attorney’s misconduct, surrounding facts and
circumstances, previous ethical violations, the willfulness of the
conduct, and the adequacy of the attorney’s previous opportunity to
present evidence sufficient for determination of appropriate

sanctions." Syl. pt. 3, Committee on Legal Ethics v. Folio,
W. Va. , 401 S.E.2d 248 (1990).
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Per Curiam:

In this attorney disciplinary proceeding, the Committee
on Legal Ethics of the West Virginia State Bar ("the Committee")
recommends that this Court annul the license to practice law of the
respondent, Henry Clay Hart, Jr. Mr. Hart plead guilty in United
States District Court for the Southern District of California to
aiding and assisting in the preparation and presentation of a false
and fraudulent federal income tax return in vielation of 26 U.S.C.
§ 7206(2) (1988).' Mr. Hart maintains that he has a bona fide
defense to the allegations contained in the Committee’s complaint,
and asserts that he is entitied to ‘an evidentiary mitigation
hearing. For the reasons stated below, we conclude that Mr. Hart

is not entitled to an evidentiary mitigation hearing and hereby

26 U.S.C. 7206(2) (1988) provides, in relevant part,
that any person who

"Iw]illfully aids or assists in, or procures,
counsels, or advises the preparation or
presentation under, . . ., the internal
revenue laws, of a return, . . ., which is
fraudulent or is false as to any material
matter, . . .; Or

shall be guilty of a felony and, upon
conviction thereof, shall be fined not more
than $100,000 ($500,000 in the case of a
corporation), or imprisoned not more than
three years, or both, together with the costs
of prosecution.



order the annulment of his license to practice law in the State of
West Virginia.
I

An information dated October 12, 1990, was filed against
Mr. Hart in the United States District Court of the Southern
District of California charging that he willfully aided and
assisted in, and procured, counseled and advised, the preparation
and presentation of an individual income tax return to the Internai
Revenue Service which was false and fraudulent as to a material
matter. The information charged that the income tax return of
Robert G. Brown represented that Mr. Brown was entitled under the
provisions of the Internal Revenue Laws to claim a partnership
operation loss of $13,509.00 and a $25,732.00 tax credit resulting
from investing in Whitewater River Electric Power Limited, a
windmill partnership. The information further charged that Mr.
Hart knew that Mr. Brown was not entitled to claim either the
operating loss or the tax credit for 1984. ©On October 12, 1990,
Mr. Hart signed a waiver of indictment in which he agreed that the
proceedings in this case would be by information rather than by
indictment.

On January 22, 1991, Mr. Hart pleaded guilty to aiding
and assisting in the preparation and presentation of a false and
fraudulent federal income tax return in violation of 26 U.S.C. §
7206(2) (1988). Mr. Hart was sentenced to a term of imprisonment

for a period of eighteen months.
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The Committee contends that Mr., Hart’s license to
practice law should be annulled because he was convicted of crimes
inveolving moral turpitude and professional unfitness within the
meaning of section 23 of article V of the By-laws of the West
Virginia State Bar and crimés that reflect adversely on the
lawyer’s honesty, trustworthiness, and fitness as a lawyer in other
respects within the meaning of 8.4 (b)? of the Rules of Professional
Conduct. Mr. Hart maintains that he has a bona fide defense to the
Committee’s allegations and requests an evidentiary mitigation
hearing.

i1

The burden of proof is on the Committee to prove by full,
preponderating and clear evidence the charges contained in the
complaint filed on behalf of the Committee. Syl. pt. 1, Committee
on Legal Ethics v. lewis, 156 W. Va. 809, 197 S.E.2d 312 (1973).
However, we recognized in syllabus point 1 of Committee on_ Legal
Ethics v. Folie, = W. Va. ___, 401 S.E.2d 248 (1990), that proof
of a final conviction satisfies the Committee’s burden of proof:

’'"Where there has been a final criminal
conviction, proof on the record of such
conviction satisfies the Committee on Legal

Ethics’ burden of proving an ethical violation
arising from such conviction." Syllabus Point

2, Committee on legal Ethics v. Six,
W. Va. , 380 S.E.2d 219 (1989).' Syl. Pt.

1, Committee on legal Ethics v. Boettner, Jr.,
W. Va. , 394 S.E.2d 735 (1990).

Rule 8.4(b) of the Rules of Professional Conduct
specifically provides that it is professional misconduct for an
attorney to "commit a criminal act that reflects adversely on the
lawyer’s honesty, trustworthiness or fitness as a lawyer in other
respects([.]"



The Committee in the case before us has satisfied its burden of
proving'Mr._Hart’s conviction by providing this Court with a copy
of the order of conviction.3

Under section 23 of article VI of the State Bar By-laws,
an attorney’s license shall be annulled upon proof that he has been
convicted of any crime involving moral turpitude or professional
unfitness as we recognized in syllabus point 3 of Committee on
Legal Ethics v. Six, W. Va. __, 380 S.E.2d 219 (1989):

tugection 23, Part E, Article VI of the

By-Laws of the West Virginia State Bar imposes

upon any Court before which an attorney has.

been qualified a mandatory duty to annul the

license of such attorney to practice law upon

proof that he has been convicted of any crime
involving moral turpitude." Point 2,

syllabus, In the Matter of Mann, 151 W. Va.
644 [154 S.E.2d 860 (1967)].’ Syllabus, In Re

Smith, 158 W.Va. 13, 206 S.E.2d 920 (1974).
However, as we pointed out in Committee on Legal Fthics

v. Boettner, W. Va. at , 394 S.E.2d at 738, under our newvw

professional code, Rule 8.4 of the Rules of Professional Conduct,

the focus has shifted from "illegal conduct involving moral

3section 25 of article VI of the State Bar Bv-laws, at
page 572 of the 1991 "Court Rules" volume, provides, in relevant
part:

In any proceeding to suspend or annul the
license of any such attorney because of his
[or her] conviction of any crime or crimes
mentioned in sections twenty-three or twenty-
four, a certified copy of the order or
judgment of conviction shall be conclusive
evidence of guilt of the crime or crimes of
which the attorney has been convicted. A plea
or verdict of guilty or a conviction after a
plea of nolo contendere shall be deemed to be
a conviction within the meaning of this
section.



.’,

.

turpitude" to "a criminal act that reflects adversely on the
lawyer’s honesty, trustworthiness or fitness in other respects."
Rule 8.4 now concentrates on the lawyer’s criminal act as it
reflects on his or her fitness to practice law rather than on the
concept of "moral turpitude." Id. at __ , 394 S.E.2d at 738.

This Court recognized in earlier cases decided prior to
the adoption of Rule 8.4 that the filing of a false and fraudulent
income tax return in an attempt to defraud the government is a
crime involving moral turpitude. n the Matter of ent, 154_
W. Va. 333, 175 S.E.2d 461 (1970); In_the Matter of Mann, 151
W. Va. 644, 154 S.E.2d 860 (1967), overruled on ancther point by
Committee on Legal Ethics v. Boettner, _ W. Va. at ___, 394
S.E.2d at 739. Upon considering this same criminal act under Rule
8.4, we find that Mr. Hart’s attempt to defraud the government by
filing a false and fraudulent income tax return for his client was
a flagrant violation of Rule 8.4 and clearly indicates that Mr.
Hart is unfit to practice law.

Mr. Hart asks this Court to grant his request for an
evidentiary hearing to allow him to introduce mitigating factors
which may bear on the disciplinary punishment to be imposed.
However, there is no absolute right to a mitigation hearing in
every disciplinary proceeding. As we pointed out in syllabus point

3 of Folio, supra: -

The cases in which a mitigation hearing
will be appropriate are the exception rather
than the rule. Whether a mitigation hearing
is appropriate in a particular instance will
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depend upon a variety of factors, including
but not 1limited +to, the nature of the
attorney’s misconduct, surrounding facts and
circumstances, previous ethical violations,
the willfulness of the conduct, and the
adequacy of the attorney’s previous
opportunity to present evidence sufficient for
determination of appropriate sanctions.

In the case now before us, Mr. Hart plead guilty to the

offense of aiding and assisting in the preparation and presentation

of a false and fraudulent income tax return in violation of 26 .

U.s.c. 7206(2)' (1988) . Mr. Hart is currently serving his eighteen-
month sentence. In his response to the Committee’s petition to
have his law license annulled, Mr. Hart did not identify any
circumétances surrounding the case which would prompt this Court to
grant him a mitigation hearing. We therefore deny Mr. Hart'’s
request for an evidentiary mitigation hearing.

For the reasons stated above, we shall follow the
recommendation of the Committee and order the annulment of Mr.
Hart’s license to practice law in the State of West Virginia. We

shall also require Mr. Hart to reimburse the Committee for the

costs it has incurred in connection with this proceeding. See
Committee on ILegal Ethics v. Simmons, W. Va. ; 399 S.E.2d
894 (1990); Committee on Legal Ethics v. White, W. Va. , 349

S.E.2d 919 (1984):; Committee on Legal Ethics v. Pence, 161 W. Va.

240, 240 S.E.2d 668 (1977).

License Annulled.



